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On a bright October afternoon, the only one in a Sir Vincent de Ferranti bought the Henbury estate
week of endless rain, the members and friends of C after the last war from the executors of the
met at Henbury Hall, the home of Mr & Mrs Sebasti: Brocklehurst family which had died out.

de Ferranti. The present Palladian style house was built by his s
A house is recorded on the site in the Domesday  Sebastian de Feanti in 1984. It is built of French
Book and presumably there would have beseme limestone from a quarry near Rheims and the archit

cultivated land at that time to grow food. was Julian Bicknell.



There are records of the garden being open to the The Walled Kitchen Gardefsee below)s a major

public in the 1890s. It is alleged that Humphry and current project. Following years of neglect and
Reptonworked here when he worked in Cheshire bu little use, it had become a sorry state. A decision to
no records survive. restore the >100 year old Foster & Pearson

When Sir Vincent de Ferranti came here after the w greenhouses was taken atiiey are now fully
the gardens were set out more or less as they are Opel’atlonaL The plan is to use them for collections
seen now but they were completely derelict. The  ferns and orchids as well as a source of plants for u

walled garden and the peach cases wdse m a very in the house. The walled garden IS now beaut|fu|ly |
derelict state. out as a working vegetable and cutting garden and |

nearing commtion. New beds are being planted witl
vegetables for the forthcoming season.

The two lakes were here but there had previously
been a third lake which was lost in 1872. Itwas a 1
acre lake irthe wood and was lost due to a
catastrophic storm. The top two dams broke and th
water cascaded out, floaayy much of the area and
causing great damage to land property and livestocl
There were claims for reparation and the case finall
went to the Upper House. Their Lordships decided
was an Act of God so no damages could be claimec
The case was Marsldiv Rex which idoth a famos
andlandmark case still quoted.

Sir Vincent took a keen interest in the garden and V
Matthews from the nearby Matthews Nursery at
Alderley Edge was instrumental helping Sir Vincent
bring the garden back to life.

The gar@n has become oveaplanted and congested. S :
Many wonderful trees and shrubs have failed to Also in the garden is a swimming pool housed insi
flourish due to being #sited. The ongoing task is to pool house designed by Sebastian de Ferranti arlo
0clear the decksd di sc a byFrancis Machin.

re-siting/exposing those plants selected for retentior
The aim is to create a simpler, more structured
landscape with strong planting of specimens that ar
suited to the location.

The main garden is centred on a large lake, with wa
leading around the water. This is a very peaceful ai
tranquil part ofthe estate with fabulous views and we E5
enjoyed spectacular reflections of the sunshine and &
autumn colours on the watefsee below)
Surrounding the lake are several specimen shrubs ¢
trees. Some of the steeper areas are identified as
being in need of &ntion and will be tackled in due
course

(above) and (inside)
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The main features of the garden include a Gothic fo
a red octagonal Chinese summerhouse, an oriental
bridge and a temple bell from Japan. This was brot
from Tokyo in 1880 and installed in the garden by V
Thomas Unett Brocklehurst.



Nearest to the house is the Little Garden where onc
cows were kept. This is an enclosed area with a
formal garden of box edged parterres and yew
buttresses all beautifully clipped. This area has son
wonderful features including a windawerlooking

the parkland.

A beautiful afternoon was concluded with afternoon
tea in the stablesbuilt circa. 1690.

Mary Moxon and Gilly de Ferranti

CGT members have such a range ¢
skills. We certainly number two
artists among our membership.

Anne Mackinnon sent me this lovel
painting. She wrote:

ol really enjoyed our visit to Henbur
Hall Gardens last October and was
inspired to paint from it. This is of tf
Autumn colours by one of the lakes

If you would like to see more of
Anneds hwmotvisitherw
website at
www.annemackinnon.com

And why not share your own
impressions with others. You can
send paintings, photos, comments,
or articles to the address at the end
of this newsletter.

BirtlesHall, Macclesfield

CGT members and friends (48 in total) were given ¢ times larger. Robert Hibbert, owner of the estate
introduction to the estate by our hosts for the 17911797, was an important collector of trees and
afternoon, Ray Sheldon and Martin Dearden. plarts. He was a major customer of Caldwells of

With respect to the history of the property, we were Knutsford, who supplied most of the mature trees
told that the manor of Birtles origirtes from around ~ Visible in the garden today.

1260 when John de Asthull became Lord of the The gardens were once formal in design with
Manor. extensive parterres. Some of the land has since be

Birtles manor was extensive and significantly larger réturned to agriculture and the gardens fallen into
than today due to inclusion of the land which covere Significant decline.

much of Henbury parish. The ownership of the mar As part of the post 1995 development, clearance wc
and lands subsequently padghrough many different and replanting has been undaken by a managemen
proprietors. company created by thiourteen property owners.
The current manor house was built in 1819 to replac Although significant progress has been made, work
the Old Hall but has been modified by its owners ov 0ngoing with many projects still in the pipeline.

the years and in response to damage by fire. . :

In 1995, the Hall was sold to developers and the h
current estde now includes 6 apartments in the hall,
cottages and 2 houses. The development was
controlled by English Heritage and the estate is now
Grade Il listed.

The Birtles estate is currently 13 acres. In theh16
century the estate was estimated to berse five



http://www.annemackinnon.com/

The entrance forecourt to Birtle$dall is a terrace

To one side of the path and beside the rill, is the

with simple flower beds and a balustrade that define cherry orchard planted in 1970 with trees supplied k

the space. The views overlook the parkland and the
croguet lawn (original tennis court) with its pavilion

A serpentine path leads to the long walk beside aril
A small stream, Balgrook, flows through the gardens
It has been straightened in part form the shallow rill
incorporating three cascades. The walk leads west
through woodland including maturesbch trees of

considerable girth.

~

Hilliers nursery. The walk continues towards the
Japanese Garden which was uncovered during the
recent restordion activities.

In the early 19 century, interest in Japanese garden
was at its peak. The owners of the Hall the time
created a water featureusing stone from orsite
building demolition and the stream which runs throu
the estate. Some mature rhododendrons, azaleas ¢
camellias are evident and have been supplemented
with recent replanting. To the north of the Japanese
garden is an informal woodland of beechds
underplanted with bluebells.

The Hibbert family and the later Cloggrookes family,
were major benefactors to the residents of Over
Alderley. Birtles House and buildings/bothy, also
known as the gymnasium, were used by the garden
and by the localammunity to stage dances and play
It is now a single property with a walled garden.
’ BT e I »:J 4 = : 4

The Barn House, originally attached to the Hall, was
probably part of the estate manager
office/laccommodation. It is now a detached resider
with a small garden

Our visit to Birtles Estate was concluded with an
informal summer picnic. As no charge for the visit
was made, CGT made a donation £240 to the East
Cheshire Hospice as a gesture of thanks.

Mary Moxon

The history of BirtledHall, its gardens and owners over more than two centufiasbeenuncovered by the
Research and Recording Groupheir report was the basis for these notes which were given to attendees.

The original Birtles Hall lay close to the road betwee
Chelford and Macclesfield. The hall no longer surviv
but the site is known as Birtles Old Hall. The Birtles
Hall wevisited was constructed
Past ur ened of thealdthdll after both estates
came into the ownership of Robert Hibberti796. It

was Robert Hibbertds fo
plantations and the slave trade which allowed him tc
purchase the estates and build Birtles Hall.

In 1819 Robert Hibbert moved to his new house,
Birtles Hall, built in the neo classical style watlive
bay ashlar front, lonic porch, cornice and balustrade
placed on a manmade terrace facing south over
undulating ground falling south to the road between
Macclesfield and Chelford. To the south east small
hillocks marked as tumuli on the Ordince Stvey
map(see page 6nclude one late Bronze Age barrow
a scheduled monument. The surrounding topograp



was ideal for laying out a parlvidence from
Caldwell and Sons, nurserymen of Knutsford,
customer ledger, 17891796 indicate that Robert
Hibbert was purchasing considerable numbers of tre
in 1791, suggesting that he was improving the Birtle
estate at this time. The orders also include a large
number of vegetable seeds, probably for the walled
garden at Birtles Old Hall which continued be used
by the family.

Robert Hibbert died inl835 leaving the Birtles estate
his Jamaica estates and slaves, and a considerable
fortune to his eldest son Thomads.

A p | a nBirtteb Estatesan thée Townships of Birt
Alderley, Henbury and Mesfetld, the property of
Thomas Hibbert E5q d &837%records the property
at this time. The plan indicates a direct tree lined
approach to the Hall from Birtles Lane to the east as
well as a drive south through the parkland to Birtles
Lane and the maiWacclesfield Chelford Road. In
1850t he hal |l was siteagmmafine ¢
park of about 50 acres, ornamented with a fine shee
water and diversified with sylvan ligatlibhe Hibbert
familyreputedly constructed the lake (on the old
Birtles estate) as a means of alleviating unemploym
after the Crimean War (posii856), and it is
understood that the rills in the brook at Birtles Hall
were created by ffiresheeta m
watedb woul d have been thei s
hall.

The 1872 Ordnance Survey indicates the extension
the grounds north of the hall and development of the
gardens to the east along the brook. 1879 Thomas
Hibbert died and the property passed to his son
Colonel Hugh Robert Hibbert of the 1stusiliers.
Hugh Hibbert had financial difficulties, and 884
some lands were sold to Lord Stanley of Alderley wl
then purchased the whole property in 1890 while it
was tenanted by the Close Brooks family.

It seems likely that the development of theviztdian
style gardens seen in historic postcards were carrie
out by the Close Brooks family. Itis not known
whether they developed a rockery around the strear
or whether this existed previously. Nor is it known
whether they developed the area as a Jegz@ style
garden or whether this was a name that became
attached to the area by others.

In 1914 the property is recorded as belonging to Lor
Stanley KCMG of Government House, Melbourne a
being occupied by Mrs Brooks Cle&rooks. During
the First World War Birtles Hall and grounds were

used as a military hospital and1817 became a
specialisvenereal disease hospital for 50 officers.

In 1920 the property was sold to Frank Abraham
Howarth. The family used it as a country house
enjoying fishing rights on the lake, hosting tennis
parties and having vegetables delivered from the ol
walled garden In 1937 the estate was sold tthe
Norton family who demolished the west wing. In
Septemberl938 there was a major fire which
destroyel the interior. Mr and Mrs D. G. Norton
engaged the Manchester Arts and Crafts architect
Henry Sellars to prepare designs for reconstruction.
Sellars remodelled the interior of the house but
retained the relationship of the principal rooms to th
grounds During the Second World War Mrs Norton
prevented military requisitioning of her new home by
employing local women to sew uniforms at the hall.

Mr and Mrs Norton took a keen and active interest il
their garden and opened it for the National Gardens
Schem. It was they who planted the cherry glade,
probably in the 1950s, replacing the flower garden
shown on one of the historic postcards. Mr Norton
died in 1970 but his wife remained at the Hall until h
death in 1993. In Ma$994 the contents of the Hal
were sold by Sothebys at auction and the Hall and
main part of the curtilage, excluding the home farm,
put up for sale. The Hall was sold to Mr Christophe
Bauer and Mr John Andrew who developed the
current estate with 6 apartments in the hall, 6 cotag
and 2 houses, completed in 1996.

Birtles Hall Estate Management Company Limited w
formed in 2002 and purchased the freehold from
Bauer and Andrew. Each property owner has an ec
share and if a property is sold then the share is
transferred to thenew owner. The company has
three directors who hold office for three years and
retire by rotation. They are responsible for the
management of the estate and also for the purchast
LPG which is stored in underground tanks. The ree
bed waste system wasstalled in 1995 and is
maintained by the management company.

Andrew Norton owns the park and leases it to a
farmer.

! Some of his fortune came from compensation received
the Slavery Abolition Act of 1833.

Bagshawds Directory 1850

®The cottages were converted first then the Hall. Birtles
House was next and then finally the barn was converted.
Michael Atherton the cricketer lived there for a while.

The full Research report, complete with photos and maps is available as ayuli.wbuld like a copy, please
contact Barbara Mothbarbara.moth@btinternet.com

Overleaf: The grincipal remaining features Birtles Hall
shown on 1910 Ordnance Survey
(ns = not shown)
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8. Tree belts- along A537 (ns)

9. Plantations west of hall

10. Icehouse

11. Walks- principal walk in garden

12. Lawns- east of hall

13. Rustic summerhouse beside croquet lawn

14. Steps- flights of stone steps

15. Rill

16. Cascades three- a, b and c

17. Japanese style gardeperhaps originally simply a Victorian rockery
18. Specimen treesoaks in the park and exotic trees in the gardens (ns)

. Birtles Hall- listed

building Grade Il,
English Heritage
UID: 58324

. South and east terrace

walls- listed building
Grade Il, English
HeritageUID: 58325

. Stable block listed

building Grade 11,
English Heritage
UID: 351249

. Former Haybarn listed

building Grade II,
English Heritage
UID: 58326

. Tumuli- bowl barrow -

scheduled monument
English Heritage
UlD: 22577

. Gate pillars- at

entrance on A537 and
on Birtles Lane beside
Vicarage (ns)

. Gate Lodge unlisted

but thought to be
contemporary with the
hall (ns)

Lancel ot oCapabilitydé Brown," the

century was not renowned for his modesty.

OMr. Capability Brown, the gre€
standing in Blenheim Park, and surveying with infinite Delight the v
magnificent Piece of Water which had been suggested by his Fanc
finished under his Direction, waseasefio say, Thames! Thames! thg
wilt never forgive me for this

Public Advertiser , 9 September, 1772




The CGT Lisbon Trip, 145 September 2013
PartTwo

Day Two was to the hilly area of Sintra, close to Lisbon, where we visited three very differerghatly

impressive cultural landscapes and gardens. The parks and palaces of Sintra comprise a World Heritage Sit

Pena Park

Pena is the most important part of the World
Heritage Site. It transformed a barren, rocky, granit
mountain to a romantic landscape with castles, lake
model farm, valleys grottos, arboreta and gardens.

We were lucky to have Nund®liveira, an agronomist
responsible for Pena, Queluz and Monserrate, as ot
guide.

We learned that Pena is the site of an abandoned
convent, and Don Ferdinando Il Saxe Coburg and h
bride Dona Maria, the Portuguese Queen visited he
on honeymoon. Heawvas quite a visionary, seeing it
had potential for a romantic landscape, a cross

Nuno led us up to the castle via the historic route,

between a tropical paradise and the German forests Where views of the castle are only glimpsed

He bought the convent, castle, properties around ar
200 hectares of land for his park in 1838. Work was
still ongoing wen he died in 1885. The vegetation w
see now is not natural, although it covers the hillside

Management is an immense challenge, with only th
funds from visitors to cover the costs and a team of
gardeners, 2 path people and 6 foresters (for 8@0
hectares under Nunoos
creative interventions.

Young goats are fed acacia shoots, to teach them tc
eat the acacia (which i
rhododendron 6 our bi g gsgsiNuna)i gt

He has imported draug horses from Belgium, to
eliminate more damaging tractors and mechanical
equi pment . thisida spa forghem, they®
work two days on, one dayafhere as in Belgium the
worked every day. 0

Nuno says they have no volunteers, becausse is
no tradition of volunteering in Portugal, although he
trying to introduce the idea. Many of his best worke
are prisoners, gsecially older ones in their 30who
recognise being given an opportunity to work, gain
skills and be paid a small sisrtheir chance for a
better life.

m

momentarily, rat her t ha

from the large car park. This helped us understand
the overall oncept. As we round the corner, and the

palace comes partially into view it stands proud and
colourful against a clear blue sky. The eclectic
architecture becomes even more obvious as we mo
into the palace enclosure itself. From here there are
spectaalar views across Pena and other parts of
Sintra.



